
City of Marathon Planning Commission 
Monday November 17, 2025 

9805 Overseas Hwy 
City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 PM 
1. Call To Order

2. Pledge Of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Approval Of Minutes

5. Items For Public Hearing

6. Adjournment

5. Items For Public Hearing

Item 1.  An Ordinance Of The City Of Marathon, Florida; Amending Chapter 102 “Development 
Application Review Procedures” By Creating Article 25 “Requests For Accommodations”, 
Amending Chapter 104 “Specific Use Regulations”, Section 104.20 Entitled “Group Home”, 
Amending Chapter 110 “Definitions”, Article 3 Entitled “Defined Terms”; Providing For 
Severability; Providing For Thes Repeal Of Conflicting Provisions; Providing For The 
Transmittal Of This Ordinance To The Department Of Commerce After Final Adoption By The 
City Council; And Providing For An Effective Date. 



Draf
t

Page 1 of 3 

City of Marathon Planning Commission 
Monday September 15, 2025 

9805 Overseas Hwy 
City Hall Council Chambers 

MINUTES 

Royse called the meeting of the Planning Commission to order on Monday September 15, 2025, at 5:30 
pm. 

In attendance: Planning Director Brian Shea, Attorney Steve Williams, Admin Assistant Lorie Mullins, 
Planner McKenzie Fraley, Planner Dan Guilizo, and members of the public.  

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

The roll was called. Hiram Machado-present; Mary Ann Royse-present; Mike Cinque-present; Andrew
George-present; Matt Sexton-absent.

Royse called for an approval of the Minutes from the last meeting. Royse moved to approve. Machado 
seconded. The motion was approved 4-0. 

The quasi-judicial statement was read into the record.  

Item 1 was read into the record. Consideration Of A Request For A Development Agreement, For
QOF Inc., Pursuant To Chapter 102, Article 8 Of The City Of Marathon Land Development Regulations
(“The Code”) Entitled “Development Agreement” For The Development Of Four (4) Single Family
Affordable Residences; Located At And Around 701 91st Street; Which Is Legally Described As Lots 13 
And 14 Sea Crest Heights Subdivision, Marathon, Monroe County, Florida; Having Real Estate
Numbers 00350630-000000 & 00350640-000000, Nearest Mile Marker 52. 

Royse recused herself, see Form 8B attached. 

Shea presented the item citing the amendments to the development agreement so that the agreement 
meets current codes. 

Cinque questioned why a development agreement was needed.  The applicant applied for a development 
agreement, so it is brought forward. The agreement will document the approved setback variance. 

Aranda Jr. presented the item for the Commission. 
-2020 Application was submitted for 2 duplexes.
-BPAS-21-75 is the application number for all 4 allocations.
-May 26, 2021 the Building Official approved the application.
-July 29, 2021 the BPAS was ready.
-1 affordable allocation was awarded 9/21/2021.
-Aranda stated that he was not sure why he needed a developer’s agreement.



Draf
t

Page 2 of 3 
 

-Aranda asked why are there separate affordable lists and why they were not awarded 4 allocations at 
the same time? 
-Cinque asked Aranda his intention for the market rate allocation that currently exists on the property. 
 
Aranda broke down a time line: 
-3/30/22-submitted for a variance for 16 inches.  
-7/2022 he was told he needs to submit an easement. 
-7/2022 Libby Frasier said the same…easement needed. 
-7/2022 Aranda was told they could not be on the agenda because there are no affordable allocations.  
Aranda asked if there was a policy on not going to a public hearing.   
-Aranda went through the amendments to the DA, what he will accept and not accept.  The additional 3 
BPAS application numbers being one of the items not accepted.  
-Aranda questioned SB180, Williams tried to explain SB180, was interrupted by Aranda so the 
conversation ended.   Aranda asked that this conversation be stricken.  
-At this point in his presentation Aranda stated that he didn’t care if the item was denied by the 
Commission. 
 
Public Speakers:  

• Glenn Schofield spoke against the item due to setbacks to his property until he understood.  
 
Cinque, as Vice Chair, opened the item for discussion.  
 
Machado questioned the actual agreement as it is apparent that an agreement had not been reached.   
 
Williams explained why the agreement is required to include verbiage from the code, LDRs, and comp 
plan.   
 
Cinque stated that there is enough affordable housing in the community now and he would vote against 
this project. 
 
Cinque made a motion to deny the item. Machado seconded.  The motion to deny was approved 4-0.       
 
 Items 2 and 3 were read into the record. An Ordinance By The City Of Marathon, Florida, Amending 
The City’s Comprehensive Plan, Amending Policy 1-4.2 “Specific Standards And Requirements For 
Workforce-Affordable Housing”; Providing For Severability; Providing For The Repeal Of Conflicting 
Provisions; Providing For The Transmittal Of This Ordinance To Florida Commerce; And Providing For 
An Effective Date Upon The Approval Of This Ordinance By Florida Commerce. 
-AND- 
An Ordinance By The City Of Marathon, Florida, Amending Chapter 104, Article 1 “General 
Provisions” By Amending Section 104.02.1 “Affordable -- Early Evacuation Residential Unit” To 
Address Government Agency Management; Providing For The Repeal Of All Ordinances Or Parts 
Thereof Found To Be In Conflict; Providing For Severability; Providing For The Transmittal Of This 
Ordinance To Florida Commerce After Final Adoption By The City Council; Providing For Inclusion In 
The Code Of Ordinances And Providing For An Effective Date. 
 
Shea presented the items. 



Draf
t

Page 3 of 3 

Cinque stated there is enough affordable housing which is taxing our resources and destroying the 
community character.   

Shea explained the housing authority, an ILA with the County, and onsite management. 

Royse moved to approve Item 2.  George seconded.  The roll was called.  The motion was approved 3-1, 
Cinque dissenting.  

Royse moved to approve Item 3. Machado seconded.  The roll was called.  The motion was approved 3-
1, Cinque dissenting. 

Motion and second to adjourn at 6:20pm. 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
MaryAnn Royse-Planning Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Lorie Mullins-Admin Assistant 
Planning Department 

Audio-Video is available upon request. 

Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Planning Commission 
with respect to any matter considered at such hearing or meeting, one will need a record of the proceedings and for such 
purpose that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made; such record includes the testimony 
and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
ADA Assistance: Anyone needing special assistance at the Planning Commission Meeting due to disability should contact 
the City of Marathon at (305-) 743-0033 at least two days prior thereto. 

(Please note that one or more Marathon City Council members may participate in the meeting.) 



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
 
Meeting Date:  November 17, 2025 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and Council Members 
 
From:   Brian Shea, Planning Director  
 
Agenda Item:   An Ordinance Of The City Of Marathon, Florida; Amending Chapter 102 
“Development Application Review Procedures” By Creating Article 25 “Requests For 
Accommodations”, Amending Chapter 104 “Specific Use Regulations”, Section 104.20 Entitled 
“Group Home”, Amending Chapter 110 “Definitions”, Article 3 Entitled “Defined Terms”; 
Providing For Severability; Providing For Thes Repeal Of Conflicting Provisions; Providing For 
The Transmittal Of This Ordinance To The Department Of Commerce After Final Adoption By 
The City Council; And Providing For An Effective Date. 
             
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL. 
 
APPLICANT: City of Marathon 
 
REQUEST: 
 
To amend the Land Development Regulations to allow to address “Recovery Residences” 
consistent with newly enacted State legislation.  
 
Purpose of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The State Legislature has recently established new standards associated with “Recovery 
Residences.” This amendment brings the City code into compliance with the new State 
standards. This requires changes to Chapter 102 – Development Application Review 
Procedures, Chapter 104 – Specific Use Regulations, and Chapter 110 – Definitions.  
 
Specifically, these changes add a definition “Recovery Residence” to Article 110-3 Defined 
Terms. In addition, the proposed amendment establishes standards for the review and 
administration of “Recovery Residences” within Section 104.20 consistent with State 
Guidelines. Finally, these text amendments establish specific review procedures for the 
administration of “Recovery Residences” within Chapter 102 – Development application 
Review Procedures.”  
 
AUTHORITY 
 

Section 102.26. Planning Commission Recommendation. 
A. Authority: The PC shall consider a proposed text amendment at the request of 
the Council. 
B. Review Criteria: The PC shall review such proposed amendment, based upon 
the criteria listed below:   

1. The need and justification for the change; 

 



2. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the Comprehensive Plan; 
and 
3. Whether the proposed change shall further the purposes of the LDRs and 
other City Codes, regulations and actions designed to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Findings: The PC shall make a finding of whether the proposed amendment is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and a recommendation shall be prepared and 
forwarded to the Council, indicating if the proposed amendment should be:   

1. Approved as proposed; 
2. Approved with amendments proposed by the PC; or 
3. Denied 
 

Section 102.27. - Hearing(s) by Council. 
A. The decision to process a text amendment is within the sole discretion of the Council. 
B. For any proposed text amendment, the Council shall hold a minimum of two (2) public 
hearings, conforming to the requirements of Fla. Stat. Ch. 166, before taking action on the 
amendment. 
 

Section 102.28. - Action by Council. 
Following the public hearings, the Council shall make a finding of whether the 

proposed text amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and may approve, 
approve with changes, or deny the proposed amendment.  

 
As noted, review of proposed LDR text amendments is to be made based on three basic criteria:  
need and justification for change, consistency with the adopted Comprehensive Plan, and whether 
the proposed amendment will further the purposes of the LDRs, other ordinances, and actions 
taken to further the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan. The Planning Commission, in 
reviewing the proposed amendment, may recommend approval as is, approval with changes, or 
denial to the City Council. 
 
ANALYSIS OF LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION TEXT AMENDMENTS:  
 
Section 102.26(B) of the Land Development Regulations requires that the following standards and 
criteria be considered for any proposed text amendment. Each criteria and explanation of relevance 
to this proposed amendment are listed below: 
 

A. The need and justification for the change; 
 
The State has established new standards to guide the administration of Recovery Residences 
and the proposed changes seek to bring the City’s Code into compliance with these standards.  
 
B. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 

The Housing Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan establishes a broad array of housing 
Goals, Policies, and Objectives. The proposed amendments are consistent and advance the 
following housing policies: 
 
Policy 2-1.1.1 Coordinate with Private and Non-Profit Agencies 
Through implementation of the housing program, and the Intergovernmental Coordination 
Element, the City will coordinate with appropriate private and non-profit agencies to improve 

javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)


housing opportunities and availability. §163.3177(6)(f)3. F.S. 
 
Policy 2-1.1.12 Provide City Housing Policy and Programs 
The City shall provide technical assistance, information, and referral services to the private sector 
regarding City housing policy and programs and shall assist with permit applications. 

 
 

C. Whether regulations change shall further the purposes of the LDRs and other City 
Codes, regulations and actions designed to implement the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

The proposed amendments further the purposes of the LDRs and other City Codes, regulations and 
actions designed to implement the Comprehensive Plan. The amendments bring the Code into 
compliance with newly enacted State policy associated with Recovery Residences.  

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff indicates that the proposed text amendments are consistent with the standards and tenants of 
Chapter 163 and 380 F.S., and the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted under the requirements of 
these statutes and rules.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL. 
 



CHAPTER 110 DEFINITIONS 
ARTICLE 110-3 DEFINED TERMS 
 
Recovery residence. A residential dwelling unit, the community housing component of a licensed 
day or night treatment facility with community housing, or other form of group housing, which is 
offered or advertised through any means, including oral, written, electronic, or printed means, by 
any person or entity as a residence that provides a peer-supported, alcohol-free, and drug-free 
living environment. 
 
Chapter 104 Specific Use Regulations 
[Sec 104.20] Group Home 
 
A community residential group home or Recovery Residence may be allowed pursuant to Table 
103.15.1, subject to the following standards: 
 

A. The home shall not be located within a radius of 1,000 feet of another existing small 
community residential group home unless otherwise approved as part of a conditional use permit. 
 
B. Such a home shall only be occupied by persons meeting the definition for a resident in Fla. 
Stat. 419.001 and are clients of the governmental agencies enumerated in Fla. Stat. 419.001 and 
not by persons found by a court to have committed a delinquent act. Such a home, when used as 
a recovery residence, shall also comply in all respects with Florida statutes Chapter 397 – 
Substance Abuse Services.  
 
C. The establishment must conform to setback and height regulations for the zoning district. 
 
D. The home shall be located to assure the safe care and supervision of all clients. 
 
E. Pursuant to Fla. Stat. 419.001, homes with six (6) or fewer residents shall be deemed a single-
family dwelling unit for the purposes of zoning and shall be allowed as a permitted use within 
all residential zoning districts. New residential dwelling units shall be subject to the requirements 
established in Article 1 "Building Permit Allocation System", of Chapter 107. 
 
F. Homes with seven (7) to 14 residents shall require a conditional use approval. 
 
G. The operator or applicant has received provisional certification from the State of Florida's 
designated licensing or certification entity as established by F.S. § 397.487, as amended, or 
subsequent state statute. Permanent annual certification must be issued within one hundred 
eighty (180) calendar days of the date on which provisional certification was granted. 
 



H. A recovery community residence which does not comply with all of the standards of this 
section may be approved only by way of a reasonable accommodation issued pursuant Chapter 
102 Article 25.  
 
I. The City may establish additional requirements for the review or approval of reasonable 
accommodation requests for establishing a certified recovery residence, provided such 
requirements are consistent with federal law and do not conflict with Florida Statutes 397.487. 
 
J. The operation of a certified recovery residence may be revoked for cause, including, but not 
limited to, a violation of the conditions of approval or the lapse, revocation, or failure to maintain 
certification or licensure required under Florida Statutes 397.487, if not reinstated within 180 
days. 
 

 
ARTICLE 25 REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATION 
Sec. 102.149 General 
 
A. This ordinance shall be consistent with the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. 
ss. 3601 et seq., and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. ss. 12131 et seq. In 
the application of this ordinance, the City shall not facially discriminate against or otherwise 
disparately impact the applicant. 
 
B. The Director of Planning shall establish a written application process to permit reasonable 
accommodation requests for the establishment of a certified recovery residence, which application 
must be submitted to the Planning Department. 
 
Sec. 102.150 Application 
 
A. Application. A request by an applicant for reasonable accommodation under this section shall 
be in writing. A request may be submitted by completion of a reasonable accommodation request 
form, which form is maintained by (and shall be submitted to) the Planning Department. The 
reasonable accommodation request form shall contain such questions and requests for information 
as are necessary for processing the reasonable accommodation request. The reasonable 
accommodation request form shall be substantially in the form set forth in subsection 102.150 
(A)(1), below. 
 

(1) Contents of reasonable accommodation request form: 
a. Name and contact information of the applicant, and as applicable, the applicant's authorized 
representative; 



b. Information regarding property at which reasonable accommodation is requested, including 
the address of such location; 
c. Describe the accommodation and the specific regulation(s) and/or procedure(s) from which 
accommodation is sought; 
d. Reasons the accommodation may be necessary for the applicant or the individuals with 
disabilities seeking the specific accommodation; and if relating to housing, why the requested 
reasonable accommodation is necessary to use and enjoy the housing; 
e. Description of the qualifying disability or handicap; 
f. Other relevant information pertaining to the disability or property that may be needed by the 
City in order for it to be able to evaluate the request for reasonable accommodation; 
g. A statement as to whether the applicant is seeking the accommodation in order to make 
housing and/or provision of housing financially viable, with supporting documentation; 
h. A statement as to the therapeutic necessity of the accommodation for the applicant, with 
supporting documentation; 
i. If seeking a reasonable accommodation from the definition of family: 

 
1. Proof of state licensure, as applicable to the location for which the reasonable 
accommodation is requested; or 
2. Proof of certification pursuant to Section 397.487, Fla. Stat. as amended, or alternatively, 
certification under a nationally accredited agency or recognition or sanction by Congress if 
the accommodation is for or related to a recovery residence, as defined in Section 397.311, 
Fla. Stat.; and 
3. All applicants must provide proof of satisfactory fire, safety, and health inspections as 
required by Section 397.487, Fla. Stat. or other applicable statute, as amended from time to 
time for the location for which the reasonable accommodation is requested; 

 
j. Signature of applicant; 
k. Date of application; 
l. If on-site supervisor or manager, provide the name and contact information (phone and email) 
for each; 
m. Disclosure of ownership interests of property; and 
n. Consent of all property owners for application. 

 
(2) Each application shall be date stamped upon receipt. If additional information is required, the 
City shall notify the applicant in writing within the first 30 days after receipt of the application 
and allow the applicant at least 30 days to respond. 

 
(3) Confidential information. Should the information provided by the applicant to the City 
include medical information or records, including records indicating the medical condition, 
diagnosis or medical history of the disabled individual, such individual may, at the time of 



submitting such medical information, request that the City, to the extent allowed by law, treat 
such medical information as confidential information of the disabled individual. The City shall 
thereafter endeavor to provide written notice to the disabled individual, and/or their 
representative, of any request received by the City for disclosure of the medical information or 
documentation which the disabled individual has previously requested be treated as confidential 
by the City. The City will cooperate with the disabled individual, to the extent allowed by law, 
in actions initiated by such individual to oppose the disclosure of such medical information or 
documentation, but the City shall have no obligation to initiate, prosecute or pursue any such 
action, or to incur any legal or other expenses (whether by retention of outside counsel or 
allocation of internal resources) in connection therewith, and may comply with any judicial order 
without prior notice to the disabled individual. 
 
(4) Fee. There shall be no fee imposed by the City in connection with a request for reasonable 
accommodation under this section or an appeal of a determination on such request to the City 
Council, and the City shall have no obligation to pay a requesting party's (or an appealing party's, 
as applicable) attorney's fees or costs in connection with the request, or an appeal. 
 
(5) City assistance. The City shall provide such assistance and accommodation as is required 
pursuant to FHA and ADA in connection with an applicant's request for reasonable 
accommodation, including, without limitation, assistance with reading application questions, 
responding to questions, completing the form, filing an appeal, and appearing at a hearing, etc., 
to ensure the process is accessible. 
 
(6) The City may establish additional requirements for the review or approval of reasonable 
accommodation requests for establishing a certified recovery residence, provided such 
requirements are consistent with federal law and Florida Statutes 397.487. 

 
Sec. 102.151 Procedure 
 
(A) Findings for reasonable accommodation. In determining whether the reasonable 
accommodation request shall be granted or denied, the requesting party shall be required to 
establish, at a minimum, that: 
 

(1) They are protected under the FHA and/or ADA by demonstrating that they are handicapped 
or disabled, or a qualifying entity, as defined in the FHA and/or ADA. 
 
(2) The proposed reasonable accommodations sought are reasonable and necessary to afford the 
subject individual(s) with disabilities an equal opportunity to use and enjoy the housing that is 
the subject of the request. 
 



The foregoing, in addition to applicable federal standards, (all as interpreted by the courts) shall 
be the basis for a decision upon a reasonable accommodation request made by the City Manager, 
or his/her designee, or by the City Council in the event of an appeal. 

 
(B) Decision process. The City Manager, or his/her designee, shall have the authority to consider 
and act on requests for reasonable accommodation, recertification of an approved reasonable 
accommodation, and amendment to an approved reasonable accommodation. When a reasonable 
accommodation request form has been completed and submitted to the Planning Department, it 
will be referred to the City Manager, or his/her designee, for review and consideration. The City 
Manager, or his/her designee, shall issue a written determination within sixty (60) days of the date 
of receipt of a completed application and may, in accordance with federal law:  
 

(1) Grant the accommodation request,  
(2) Grant a portion of the request and deny a portion of the request, and/or impose conditions 
upon the grant of the request, or  
(3) Deny the request, in accordance with federal law. Any such denial shall be in writing and 
shall state the grounds therefore.  

 
All written determinations shall give notice of the right to appeal. The notice of determination shall 
be sent to the requesting party (i.e. the disabled individual or his/her representative) by certified 
mail, return receipt requested.  
 
If reasonably necessary to reach a determination on the request for reasonable accommodation, the 
City Manager, or his/her designee, may, prior to the end of said sixty (60) day period, request 
additional information from the requesting party, specifying in sufficient detail what information 
is required. The requesting party shall have fifteen (15) days after the date of the request for 
additional information to provide the requested information.  
 
In the event a request for additional information is made, the sixty (60) day period to issue a written 
determination shall no longer be applicable, and the City Manager, or his/her designee, shall issue 
a written determination within thirty (30) days after receipt of the additional information.  
 
If the requesting party fails to provide the requested additional information within said fifteen (15) 
day period, the City Manager, or his/her designee, shall issue a written notice advising that the 
requesting party had failed to timely submit the additional information and therefore the request 
for reasonable accommodation shall be deemed abandoned and/or withdrawn and no further action 
by the City with regard to said reasonable accommodation request shall be required. 
 



Except as provided otherwise provided above, if a final written determination is not issued within 
60 days after receipt of a completed application, the request shall be deemed approved unless the 
parties agree in writing to a reasonable extension of time. 
 
(C) Appeal. The appeal of any decision of the City Manager or his/her designee regarding a request 
for reasonable accommodation, recertification of an approved reasonable accommodation, or 
amendment to an approved reasonable accommodation shall be considered pursuant to the 
requirements Chapter 102 Development Application Review Procedure – Article 102-17 Appeals. 
Within thirty (30) days after the City Manager's, or his/her designee's, determination regarding a 
reasonable accommodation request is mailed to the requesting party, such applicant may appeal 
the decision by filing a notice of appeal with the City Clerk. The City Clerk or designee shall act 
as clerk to the special magistrate for purposes of an appeal from a decision under this section.  
 
All appeals shall contain a statement containing sufficient detail of the grounds for the appeal. 
Appeals shall be to the special magistrate who shall, after public notice and a public hearing, render 
a determination as soon as reasonably practicable, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after 
an appeal has been filed.  
 
The appeal shall be conducted as a de novo review of the evidence on record for the original review 
under the required findings of this section. The decision of the City Council shall be considered 
final City action and may be appealed within thirty (30) days to a court of competent jurisdiction 
as provided by law. 
 
(D) Expiration of approvals. Approvals of requests for reasonable accommodation shall expire 
within one hundred eighty (180) days if not implemented. 
 
(E) Revocation of reasonable accommodation. 

(1) Any reasonable accommodation received shall be deemed revoked if the applicant or the 
property upon which the accommodation is granted is found in violation of any provision of the 
approval granting the reasonable accommodation by a court of law or by the special magistrate 
hearing code enforcement cases. 
 
(2) Failure to obtain state certification or a required state license, or failure to maintain state 
certification or a required state license or alternate certification permitted by this section, shall 
result in revocation of the reasonable accommodation and cessation of operations within sixty 
(60) days of termination of the license or certification. 

 
(F) Annual certification. All reasonable accommodation requests approved by the City shall be 
valid for no more than one (1) year and shall require annual recertification each year on or before 
February 1st.  



 
Recertification requests must be filed at least ninety (90) days before the conclusion of the end of 
the one-year period of effectiveness of the reasonable accommodation approval. The failure of the 
applicant to timely apply for annual recertification, or the denial of an annual recertification 
application, shall result in the revocation of the approved reasonable accommodation.  
 
Recertification requests shall follow the same submittal, review and procedural requirements as 
set forth above for new applications. If a reasonable accommodation is for a property which is 
required to be licensed or certified pursuant to this section or applicable state or federal law, then 
to be recertified an applicant must provide proof of active licensure or certification consistent with 
the requirements of State and Federal law.  
 
(G) Revisions. Any changes to the use or property desired by the applicant or identified by the 
City, state, or any certifying or licensing entity after approval or during the recertification process 
which require an additional reasonable accommodation or amendment to the original reasonable 
accommodation approval shall be processed as an amendment to the original approval and such 
amendment application shall follow the same application and review process set forth herein for 
an original reasonable accommodation request and shall be consistent with Chapter 102 
Development Application Review Procedures – Article 102-13 Conditional Use Permits.  
 
(H) Severability. If any part, section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, phrase, 
clause, term, or word of this Section is declared unconstitutional by the final and valid judgment 
or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, this declaration of unconstitutionality or invalidity 
shall not affect any other part, section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, phrase, 
clause, term, or word of this Section.  




